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Bldg. 01

A Life Safety Code Recertification 

Survey was conducted by the Indiana 

State Department of Health in accordance 

with 42 CFR 483.470(j).

Survey Date:  05/20/15

Facility Number:  001025

Provider Number:  15G511

AIM Number:  100245170

At this Life Safety Code survey, 

Opportunity Enterprises Inc. was found 

not in compliance with Requirements for 

Participation in Medicaid, 42 CFR 

Subpart 483.470(j), Life Safety from Fire 

and the 2000 edition of the National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) 101, Life 

Safety Code (LSC), Chapter 33, Existing 

Residential Board and Care Occupancies.

This one story facility was fully 

sprinklered.  The facility has a fire alarm 

system with hard wired smoke detection 

in corridors, in client sleeping rooms and 

in common living areas.  The facility has 

a capacity of 6 and had a census of 6 at 

the time of this survey.

Calculation of the Evacuation Difficulty 

Score (E-Score) using NFPA 101A, 

K 0000  
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Alternative Approaches to Life Safety, 

Chapter 6, rated the facility Slow with an 

E-Score of 2.32.

483.470(j)(1)(i) 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

A manual fire alarm system is provided in 

accordance with Section 9.6, 33.2.3.4.1.

Exception No 1: Where there are 

interconnected smoke detectors meeting the 

requirements of 33.2.3.4.3 and there is not 

less than one manual fire alarm box per 

floor arranged to continuously sound the 

smoke detector alarms.

Exception No. 2: Other manually activated 

continuously sounding alarms acceptable to 

the authority having jurisdiction.

K S051

 

Bldg. 01

Based on observations and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure 1 of 1 emergency 

exit doors in the recreation room was 

provided with manual fire alarm boxes.  

LSC 9.6.2.3 requires manual fire alarm 

boxes shall be provided near the natural 

path to exit an area.  This deficient 

practice affects all clients.

Findings include:

Based on observation on 05/20/15 at 

10:12 a.m., the recreation room was not 

provided with a manual fire alarm box.  

Based on an interview at the time of 

observation with the Qualified 

Developmental Disability Professional 

K S051 The facility has contacted the 

agency's contracted fire 

protection company, Shambaugh 

and Son, who will install a manual 

fire alarm box, at the emergency 

exit door in the recreation room. 

 The installation of this manual 

fire alarm box will ensure 

compliance.  The new fire alarm 

box will be tested, as with all 

other fire alarm boxes, during 

bi-monthly fire evacuation drills.

06/19/2015  12:00:00AM
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and Director of Group Homes claimed 

the exterior exit door was an exit door 

and confirmed it with the home's 

emergency evacuation floor plan.  The 

Qualified Developmental Disability 

Professional and Director of Group 

Homes acknowledge the aforementioned 

condition.

483.470(j)(1)(i) 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

PROMPT

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7, 33.2.3.5.2 and activates the fire 

alarm system in accordance with 33.2.3.4.1.  

The adequacy of the water supply is 

documented to the authority having 

jurisdiction.

Exception No. 1: In prompt evacuation 

facilities, an automatic sprinkler system in 

accordance with NFPA 13D, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in One 

and two Family Dwellings and Manufactured 

Homes, is permitted. Automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft. and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 

sq. ft., provided that such spaces are 

finished with lath and plaster or materials 

providing a 15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 2: Not applicable

Exception No. 3: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities where an 

automatic sprinkler system is in accordance 

with NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation 

K S056
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of Sprinkler Systems, automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 sq. 

ft., provided that  such spaces are finished 

with lath and plaster or material providing a 

15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 4: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities up to and 

including four stories in height, systems in 

accordance with NFPA 13R, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in 

Residential Occupancies up to and Including 

Four Stories in Height, are permitted.

Exception No. 5: Not applicable

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

SLOW

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7 and activates the fire alarm 

system in accordance with 33.2.3.4.1. The 

adequacy of the water supply is documented 

to the authority having jurisdiction.

Exception No. 1: Not Applicable

Exception No. 2: Not Applicable

Exception No. 3: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities where an 

automatic sprinkler system is in accordance 

with NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation 

of Sprinkler Systems, automatic sprinklers 

are not required in closets not exceeding 24 

sq. ft. and in bathrooms not exceeding 55 

sq. ft., provided that such spaces are 
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finished with lath and plaster or material 

providing a 15 minute thermal barrier.

Exception No. 4: In prompt and slow 

evacuation capability facilities up to and 

including four stories in height, systems in 

accordance with NFPA 13R, Standard for 

the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in 

Residential Occupancies up to and Including 

Four Stories in Height, are permitted.

Exception No. 5: Not Applicable

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

IMPRACTICAL

Where an automatic sprinkler system is 

installed, for either total or partial building 

coverage, the system is in accordance with 

Section 9.7 and activates the fire alarm 

system in accordance with 33.2.3.4.1. The 

adequacy of the water supply is documented 

to the authority having jurisdiction. 

33.2.3.5.2.

Exception No. 1: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 2: In slow and impractical 

evacuation capability facilities, an automatic 

sprinkler system in accordance with NFPA 

13D, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler Systems in One and Two Family 

Dwellings and Manufactured Homes, with a 

30 minute water supply, is permitted. All 

habitable areas and closets are sprinklered. 

Automatic sprinklers are not required in 

bathrooms not exceeding 55 sq. ft., provided 

that such spaces are finished with lath and 

plaster or materials providing a 15 minute 

thermal barrier.
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Exception No. 3: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 4: Not Applicable.

Exception No. 5: In impractical evacuation 

capability facilities up to and including four 

stories in height, systems in accordance with 

NFPA 13R, Standard for the Installation of 

Sprinkler Systems in Residential 

Occupancies up to and Including Four 

Stories in Height, are permitted.  All 

habitable areas and closets are sprinklered. 

Automatic sprinklers are not required in 

bathrooms not exceeding 55 sq. ft., provided 

that such spaces are finished with lath and 

plaster or materials providing a 15 minute 

thermal barrier.

Exception No. 6: Initiation of the fire alarm 

system is not required for existing 

installations in accordance with 33.2.3.5.5.

1.  Based on observation and interview, 

the facility failed to ensure 1 of 1 

sprinkler head in "The Office" was 

unobstructed.  NFPA 13, 1999 Edition 

Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler 

Systems, Section 5-8.5.1.1 states 

sprinklers shall be located so as to 

minimize obstructions to discharge as 

defined in 5-8.5.2 and 5-8.5.3, or 

additional sprinklers shall be provided to 

ensure adequate coverage of the hazard.

Findings include:

Based on observation on 05/20/15 at 

10:22 a.m. with the Qualified 

K S056 On 6.12.15, the contracted 

company Shambaugh and Son, 

completed a sprinkler inspection 

and ensured all sprinkler heads 

were free of corrosion or they 

replaced with a new sprinkler 

head.  The facility will ensure the 

light fixture, located in the office, 

will be moved or modified in a 

way that will no longer obstruct 

with the sprinkler spray pattern.

06/19/2015  12:00:00AM

FORM CMS-2567(02-99) Previous Versions Obsolete Event ID: ZB8O21 Facility ID: 001025 If continuation sheet Page 6 of 10



(X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES

07/10/2015PRINTED:

FORM APPROVED

OMB NO. 0938-0391

STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES

AND PLAN OF CORRECTION  IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:

(X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION

A. BUILDING

B. WING

(X3) DATE SURVEY

       COMPLETED

NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER
STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

(X4) ID

PREFIX

TAG

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES

(EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL

REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)

PREFIX

TAG

 ID
PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION

(EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE

DEFICIENCY)

(X5)

COMPLETION

DATE
CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE APPROPRIATE

PORTAGE, IN 46368

15G511 05/20/2015

OPPORTUNITY ENTERPRISES INC

5949 FIESTA AVE

01

Developmental Disability Professional 

and Director of Group Homes, the 

sprinkler head spray pattern in "The 

Office" was obstructed by the light 

fixture.  Based on interview at the time of 

observation with  Qualified 

Developmental Disability Professional 

and Director of Group Homes, they 

acknowledged and agreed that the light 

fixture would prevent water from 

protecting half the room if activated.

2.  Based on observation and interview, 

the facility failed to replace 1 of 3 

corroded sprinklers in Bathroom #1.  

LSC 9.7.5 requires all automatic 

sprinkler systems shall be inspected, 

tested and maintained in accordance with 

NFPA 25, Standard for the Inspection, 

Testing, and Maintenance of 

Water-Based Fire Protection Systems.  

NFPA 25, 1998 edition, 2-2.1.1 requires 

any sprinkler shall be replaced which is 

painted, corroded, damaged, loaded, or in 

the improper orientation.  This deficient 

practice could affect staff and one client.

Findings include:

Based on observation with the Qualified 

Developmental Disability Professional 

and Director of Group Homes on 

05/20/15 at 10:24 a.m., one of three 

automatic sprinklers in Bathroom #1 was 
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covered with green corrosion.  Based on 

interview at the time of the observation, 

the Qualified Developmental Disability 

Professional and Director of Group 

Homes supervisor acknowledged the 

aforementioned condition.

483.470(j)(1)(i) 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

(1) The facility holds evacuation drills at 

least quarterly for each shift of personnel 

and under varied conditions to - 

(i) Ensure that all personnel on all shifts are 

trained to perform assigned tasks;

(ii) Ensure that all personnel on all shifts are 

familiar with the use of the facility's 

emergency and disaster plans and 

procedures.

(2) The facility must - 

(i) Actually evacuate clients during at least 

one drill each year on each shift; 

(ii) Make special provisions for the 

evacuation of clients with physical 

disabilities: 

(iii) File a report and evaluation on each drill: 

(iv) Investigate all problems with evacuation 

drills, including accidents and take corrective 

action: and 

(v) During fire drills, clients may be 

evacuated to a safe area in facilities certified 

under the Health Care Occupancies Chapter 

of the Life Safety Code.

(3) Facilities must meet the requirements of 

paragraphs (i) (1) and (2) of this section for 

any live-in and relief staff that they utilize.

K S152

 

Bldg. 01

1. Based on record review and interview, 

the facility failed to conduct fire drills 

K S152 Evacuation drills will be 

conducted a minimum of 

once per quarter for 

06/19/2015  12:00:00AM
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quarterly on each shift for 1 of the last 4 

calendar quarters.  This deficient practice 

could affect all clients.

Findings include:

Based on record review of the fire drill 

reports titled "Residential Fire Drill 

Record" on 05/20/2015 at 9:38 a.m. with 

the Qualified Developmental Disability 

Professional and Director of Group 

Homes present, documentation for a third 

shift fire drill for the first quarter of 2015 

was not available for review.  Based on 

interview, the Qualified Developmental 

Disability Professional and Director of 

Group Homes acknowledged the lack of 

documentation.

2. Based on record review and interview, 

the facility failed to ensure 3 of 3 third 

shift fire drills were conducted under 

varied conditions.  This deficient practice 

affects all clients and staff.

Findings include:

Based on review of "Residential Fire 

Drill Record" on 05/20/15 at 9:40 a.m. 

with the Qualified Developmental 

Disability Professional and Director of 

Group Homes, 3 of 3 fire drills conducted 

over the past four quarters were between 

5:00 a.m. and 5:30 a.m.  Findings 

each shift.  The GHM will 

schedule these drills and 

see that they are 

completed. Once a drill 

is conducted, the drill 

form will be signed by 

the staff on shift and will 

include information on 

the client’s in the home 

as far as their level of 

participation/assistance 

required in the dill. Once 

these forms are 

completed,they will be 

turned into the Executive 

Assistant to Programs.  

She/he will add this drill 

tracking to a checklist of 

monthly action items and 

will ensure that all drills 

are conducted within the 

regulatory timeframes. 
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include:

a. Missing first quarter fire drill

b. 6/30/14 5:30 a.m.

c. 8/15/14 5:00 a.m.

d. 10/14/14 5:30 a.m.

Based on interview at the time of record 

review the Qualified Developmental 

Disability Professional and Director of 

Group Homes acknowledge the 

aforementioned condition.
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